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Additional research has revealed that the Tower Building’s exterior curtain wall, consisting of ribbon 

windows and porcelain-enamel panels, was manufactured by the Mesker Brothers Iron Company of St. 

Louis, Missouri, a firm famous for producing thousands of galvanized sheet-metal façades and related 

buildings components at the turn of the twentieth century. Rendering of the building was included in the 

company’s marketing materials during the 1960s (Figure 1).  The metal curtain wall manufactured by 

Mesker Brothers was made possible by the Tower Building’s architects’ use of a composite steel frame, 

and is highly important to the building’s expression of the International Style. 

 

The firm of Mesker & Brother
1
 was started in 1879 in St. Louis, Missouri, by brothers Bernard (1851–

1936) and Frank (1859–1952).  In 1884, they began to manufacture complete sheet-metal storefront and 

façade assemblies, which included millwork, glass and everything else that was needed to erect an entire 

façade.  The heyday of the company’s façade work spanned from the mid-1880s to the early 1910s, after 

which the firm began to concentrate on steel windows and related building elements.  During the First 

World War, the company produced large quantities of ranges and bread ovens for the U.S. and Allied 

governments.  After the war, it continued production of architectural elements such as steel windows, 

doors and stairs.  World War II meant more government work and Mesker Brothers produced airplane 

landing mats, fragmentation bombs, ammunition lockers, and oil and water tanks for submarine chasers.  

After WWII, the company resumed its production of metal windows, and also began manufacturing 

aluminum and steel curtain walls.  When Frank passed away in 1952, his sons Francis Augustus and John 

Bernard George continued to operate the business, while his grandsons David, Richard and Douglass 

entered the business in 1956.  A few years later John bought out Francis and left the management of the 

company to his two sons.  They held the company until 1966 when they sold most of its assets to Barry-

Wehmiller Company of St. Louis, retaining only the real estate and the company name of Mesker 

Brothers Iron Co.  Though it passed out of Mesker hands, the company continued to operate under the 

Mesker name in St. Louis until the 1980s when it moved to Huntsville, Alabama, where, as Mesker Door, 

Inc., it manufactures steel doors and frames. 

 

It is unknown how many other Mesker curtain walls were manufactured or survive.  The same Tower 

Building rendering was used in other marketing material, such as Sweet’s Architectural Catalog File from 

1965, with no mentions of any other installations.  At least one other was contracted in 1963 — the 

Donata Building in Arlington, Virginia — but it is unclear whether Mesker completed the work because 

of a legal dispute with the client.
2
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

                                                
1 The company is more commonly known as Mesker Brothers Iron Works. It was incorporated under the name “Mesker 

Brothers Iron Company” in 1912. 
2 Mesker Brothers Iron Company, Appellant, v. Donata Corporation, A & H Holding Corporation and A & H Plumbing 

Supply Corporation, Appellees. U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit. 9 Sept. 1968. Justia. N.p., n.d. Web. 29 Jan. 

2016. 
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Figure 1. Page from a 1965 commemorative booklet produced by Mesker Brothers, featuring a rendering of the 

Tower Building. 


